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1 Summary  
In January 2012 Historic Environment Projects, Cornwall Council were commissioned by 

Kier Construction - Western & Wales to undertake historic building recording of 

buildings to be demolished during the Porthcressa Regeneration Project, St Mary’s, 

Isles of Scilly (NGR SV 9040 1044) and to carry out a watching brief during 

groundworks for the development. 

The building recording of four of the buildings within the development area (three of 

which were later demolished) was carried out in February 2012. These were Building 1 

(former lifeboat house and later bulb treating station), Building 1a (former garage 

adjoining Building 1), Building 2 (library) and Building 3 (public shelter and toilet 

block). 

The watching brief was carried out between February 2012 and early March 2013, when 

the delayed groundworks were finally completed. Despite the extent and duration of the 

excavations associated with the scheme no finds, features or deposits of archaeological 

significance were recorded, only modern made-ground or sand deposits were disturbed.   

A reassessment of the history of Porthcressa Bank during the twentieth century shows 

that this is not surprising. In 1902 the recently created Council of the Isles of Scilly 

cleared the remaining traces of shipbuilding activity on the Porthcressa shore, levelled 

and grassed the area and provided seating.  

Following severe storm damage to Porthcressa Bank in 1962 new wooden sea defences 

were put in place but during the winter of 1989/90 much of the beach and the bank 

behind the wooden shuttering was washed away so new concrete defences were built in 

1994/5 and the damaged area re-landscaped. 
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2 Introduction 

2.1 Project background 

In January 2012 Historic Environment Projects, Cornwall Council (HE Projects) were 

commissioned by Kier Construction- Western & Wales to undertake historic building 

recording of buildings to be demolished during the Porthcressa Regeneration Area 

Project on St Mary’s, Isles of Scilly (Figs 1 and 2) and to carry out a subsequent 

watching brief during groundworks for the development in order to satisfy a planning 

condition.   

2.2 Aims 

2.2.1 Building recording 

The regeneration project involved the demolition of a number of buildings. It was 

therefore important that the site was recorded to an appropriate level and the results 

are made available to interested parties. In this particular instance, an English Heritage 

Level 2 record was undertaken. For the photographic record, the recorder considered:  

 Site layout and organisation 

 Function 

 Materials, method of construction 

 Fenestration 

 Internal arrangements 

 Original fixtures and fittings 

 Subsequent fixtures and fittings 

 Evidence of use and status 

 Date/period of initial build and subsequent alterations 

2.2.2 Archaeological recording 

The site specific aims for the watching brief were to: 

 Establish the presence/absence of archaeological remains. 

 Determine the extent, condition, nature, character, date and significance of 

any archaeological remains encountered. 

 To establish the nature of the activity on the site. 

 To identify any artefacts relating to the occupation or use of the site. 

 To provide further information on the archaeology of the Porthcressa area 

from any archaeological remains encountered 

2.3 Methods 

The building recording and archaeological investigation were carried out according to 

the general methodology set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) for the 

work (Johns 2012, see Appendix 2) which was based on the Brief for Building Recording 

and Archaeological Investigation prepared by the Historic Environment Planning Advice 

Officer, Cornwall Council (HEPAO) for the Planning and Development Department, 

Council of the Isles of Scilly (Markham 2011, see Appendix 1). 
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Fig 3 Locations of buildings and watching brief areas 

2.3.1 Desk–based assessment 

During the desk-based assessment historical databases and archives were consulted in 

order to obtain information about the history of the site and the structures and features 

that were likely to survive. The main sources consulted were as follows: 

 Cornwall and Scilly HER. 

 Images of England online listed buildings database. 

 Early maps and photographs (see Section 8.1).  

 Published histories (see Section 8.2). 

2.3.2 Building recording 

The building recording of four of the buildings within the development area (three of 

which were later demolished) was carried out in early February 2012. These were 

Building 1 (former lifeboat house and later bulb treating station), Building 1a (former 

garage adjoining Building 1), Building 2 (library) and Building 3 (public shelter and 

toilet block) (Fig 3). 

The principal requirement set out in the brief was a photographic survey. This was 

carried out to archive standard and includes black and white photographs taken with a 

35mm SLR camera loaded with fine grain archive quality film. Supporting colour 

photographs were taken with a digital SLR camera (with a resolution of 12 megapixels).  

All photographs were taken with a single-lens reflex camera supported on a heavy 

tripod, and most using available natural light. Flash-light was used to balance the 

lighting where there was heavy back-light. The buildings were photographed externally 

and internally. Within the buildings all accessible room spaces were photographed, the 

larger room spaces from a number of directions designed to present the design and 

character of the room spaces. A metric scale was included in all views, except where 

health and safety considerations made this impractical. 

Lot 1/Building 1/1a 

Lot 3/Building 3 

Lot 2/Building 2 

Lot 4 General landscaping 
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2.3.3 Archaeological investigations 

A construction programme setting out the groundworks-related activities for the 

scheme was provided by Matt Coates (Quantity Surveyor, Kier Western) on 5 December 

2011. 

An initial watching brief was carried out in early February 2012 during groundworks for 

the positioning of the site accommodation and the excavation of test pits, but 

subsequent works were carried out rapidly on an ad hoc basis so a variation to the 

approved WSI was agreed with the HEPAO to the effect that Trevor Kirk, the IOS AONB 

Officer, and a qualified archaeologist, would monitor the works during demolition and 

removal of foundations of Katie’s bus garage (Lot 1/Building 1a), the existing Library 

(Lot 2/Building 2), Shelter and Toilets (Lot 3/Building 3), and removal of the existing 

floor in the former Lifeboat/Bulb Treatment Station (Lot 1/Building 1) and report back 

to HE Projects, with the proviso that any archaeological features which required further 

investigation and recording would be dealt with by the HE Projects team. 

It became apparent from the watching brief that the groundworks were only disturbing 

twentieth century made-up ground so, at a meeting at the end of February between 

Charles Johns (HE Projects), Bryan Trethewey (Senior Project Manager, Kier Western), 

Andy Shepherd (Site Manager, Kier Construction) and Diana Mompoloki (Strategic 

Investment Manager, Council of the Isles of Scilly), a pragmatic approach to the 

archaeological watching brief was agreed upon whereby Kier Construction would:  

 continue works providing they did not dig any deeper than the level they were at; 

 keep HE Projects updated on progress and provide digital photos; and 

 inform HE Projects if they uncovered anything of potential archaeological interest  

and if necessary arrange for a site visit/inspection.  

The ongoing works were monitored by HE Projects, combined with other visits to St 

Mary’s. 

The groundworks, which were initially planned to be completed by the end of July 2012, 

were not finally completed until early March 2013 owing to various delays. 

2.3.4 Post-fieldwork 

During this phase the results of the building recording and the archaeological 

investigations were collated for archiving, and this report was produced. 

 

3 Location and setting 
Porthcressa is an area of Hugh Town located on the sea-facing southern side of the 

narrow isthmus upon which the town is built (NGR SV 9040 1044). It is accessible from 

both eastern and western ends and from the north where numerous small roads and 

paths connect the beach to the town (Figs 1 and 2).  

Hugh Town is located on a flat sandy isthmus; however, the hills to the east and west 

afford good views across the town and its two beaches, Town Beach and Porthcressa 

Beach. The proximity of the beaches to the town defines the character of the built 

environment in addition to the architectural quality of its small urban form. 
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4 Site history 
A historic building report and historic report for the Porthcressa Regeneration Area were 

produced for the Council of the Isles of Scilly in 2010 (Leung 2010a and 2010b) and a 

desk-based archaeological assessment of the impact of the development was carried 

out by HE Projects in 2011 (Johns 2011). 

The Cornwall and Scilly HER records only three sites within the regeneration area: the 

findspot of an early medieval granite pillar, a demolished World War Two pillbox and 

the twentieth century fire station.  

Although there was the possibility of chance finds or discoveries the results of the 

assessment indicated that the potential for buried archaeological remains dating from 

the prehistoric, Romano-British, early medieval and medieval remains to be affected by 

scheme was low. 

The assessment indicated that the potential for buried archaeological remains 

associated with nineteenth century shipbuilding was high (Fig 7), although its recorded 

site lies just outside the study area. However, the assessment did not take into account 

clearance of the remaining traces of shipbuilding activity by the Council of the Isles of 

Scilly in 1902 (Bennett et al 1991) or severe storm damage to Porthcressa Bank and 

beach in the second half of the twentieth century. 

 

 

 

 

 

Fig 4 Porthcressa from an 1862 survey of St Mary’s Town by Captain Williams (UKHO 

D6365 0h) 
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Fig 5 Detail from the 1899-91 OS map 

 

 

Fig 6 Detail from the 1909 OS map 
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Fig 7 Shipbuilding on Porthcressa, St Mary’s c 1870 (photo: © Gibson Collection) 

 

Fig 8  Late nineteenth-century view of Porthcressa with former lifeboat station (south 

elevation) on far right (photo: © Isles of Scilly Museum) 

 



Porthcressa Regeneration Project, St Mary’s, IOS, Final Report 

 

 8 

5 Building recording results 
The redevelopment work at Porthcressa included the conversion of a former lifeboat 

house (later bulb treating station) into a new library, the demolition of a former garage 

(Katie’s Bus Garage) for the construction of a new register office, the demolition of the 

existing library for the construction of new work units and apartments, the demolition 

of the existing public shelter and toilet facilities for the construction of a new amenity 

building and re-landscaping of the surrounding waterfront and foreshore. 

A building record was created for four of the buildings within the development area 

(three of which were later demolished). These were Building 1 (former lifeboat house 

and later bulb treating station), and Building 1a (former garage adjoining Building 1), 

Building 2 (library) and building 3 (public shelter and toilet block) (see Fig 3 for building 

locations). 

5.1 Building 1- former Lifeboat House/Bulb Treating Station 

(see Figs 9-16) 

The first two lifeboats for the Isles of Scilly were kept in a boathouse on Town Beach at 

Hugh Town in 1837. That station closed in 1855 and new lifeboat station was opened 

by the RNLI. This boathouse (Building 3) was built on the beach at Porthcressa in 1874 

(Fig 8). In 1889 a large self-righting lifeboat was kept moored in the harbour at St 

Marys until a smaller carriage-launched lifeboat was sent to the station in 1891. In 

1899 a new boathouse and slipway were built at Carn Thomas and Building 1 was no 

longer used as the lifeboat house (www.visiting-cornwall.co.uk/LBS/St_Marys_LBS).  

The lifeboat house was converted for use as a Bulb Treating Station in 1923 when an 

extension was added to the southern end of the building. This Bulb Treating Station 

was in operation until the 1970s when it closed. Since then the Council has used the 

building as a store. The chimney was removed and the entire building re-roofed in slate 

in the late twentieth century. 

The building is positioned on the eastern end of a row of buildings facing Porthcressa 

Bay. Its main elevation is towards the north facing the wide road, designated as 

‘Porthcressa Square’ (Leung 2010). It is constructed from granite rubble with squared 

granite quoins. It is single storey with an inserted first floor within the southern 

extension only. It has a hipped roof extension at the southern end (added in 1923) and 

the north end is bonnet-hipped with a twentieth century slate roof covering. The 

original set of large wooden doors remain in situ at the north end of the building but 

those at the south end were removed when the extension was added in 1923 and the 

building converted for use as a bulb treating station. 

The original lifeboat house was rectangular in plan with a seaward-facing gable end 

with double wooden doors from which the lifeboat would exit onto Porthcressa beach. 

Original features associated with the lifeboat house include the large double door 

opening and doors in the north elevation, a ventilation window above these doors and 

the barge boards in the apex of this elevation (Fig 9). There are also two vertical 

rectangular windows on both the east and west elevations with stone lintels over. Three 

of these have been blocked by subsequent buildings constructed adjoining the east and 

west elevations. The remaining visible window opening in the west wall has been 

boarded from within and does not allow any light into the building. The original lifeboat 

house doors at the south end of the building were removed when the 1923 southern 

extension was added but the original granite door jambs remain in situ (Fig 16). The 

brick floor with granite sett runs (Fig 14) is also original and extends as far as the early 

southern door jambs, but not within the 1923 southern extension; here the floor is 

concrete. Another original feature is the king post roof structure although the slate 

covering is of twentieth century date. 

The 1923 extension was built in granite rubble to match the existing building, with a 

vertical window facing south and a chimney on the eastern roof (since removed) for the 

operation of the hot water treatment of bulbs. There is a wide blocked door opening at 

http://www.visiting-cornwall.co.uk/LBS/St_Marys_LBS
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ground floor level in the west elevation with timber lintel over and matching wide, 

blocked opening at first floor level (Fig 12). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fig 9 North elevation of 

Building 1 (former lifeboat 

station) 
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Fig 10 East elevation of Building 1 (former lifeboat station) and building 1a (garage) 

 

Fig 11 South elevation of Building 1 (former lifeboat station) and building 1a (garage) 
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Fig 12 West elevation of south extension to Building 1 (former lifeboat station)  

 

Fig 13 Interior of Building 1 (former lifeboat station) looking north showing king post 

trusses 
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Fig 14 Interior of Building 1 (former lifeboat station) looking north showing original 

brick floor with granite wheel runs 

 

Fig 15 Interior of Building 1 (former lifeboat station) looking south-east showing 

blocked window opening in east wall 
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Fig 16 Interior of Building 1 (former lifeboat station) looking west showing door jamb at 

the south end of the original building where the later extension has been added 

5.2 Building 1a - Katie’s Bus Garage 

(see Figs 10, 11, 17 and 18) 

Adjoining the lifeboat house / bulb treating station to the east is a flat roofed, cement 

rendered garage. This building was built in the post-war period and replaced a mono-

pitch roofed structure which previously stood on the site. It functioned originally as 

‘Katie’s bus garage’ but has recently been used for storage. It has wide double doors in 

its north elevation and metal framed windows in both the west and south elevations. 
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Fig 17 North elevation of Building 1a (former bus garage)  

 

 

Fig 18 East elevation of Building 1a (former bus garage) with building 1 behind  
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5.3 Building 2- St Mary’s Library 

(see Figs 19-21) 

This building originally functioned as a DHSS office until it was adapted for use as a 

library. It is an entirely modern structure and has been built on land which is shown as 

undeveloped on the 1889-91 and 1909 OS maps (Figs 5 and 6). It is a single storey 

building with a pyramid hip roof which has a slate covering with ceramic ridge tiles and 

a central finial. The walls are concrete block-built and the openings all have timber 

frames. There are door openings in both the north and east walls. Internally the space 

is divided into two large rooms and a third smaller toilet and washroom in the north-

west corner. All the internal surfaces and fittings are modern. 

 

 

 

Fig 19 South elevation of Building 2 (St Mary’s Library) 
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Fig 20 East elevation of Building 2 (St Mary’s Library) 

 

Fig 21 Interior of southern room of Building 2 (St Mary’s Library) looking north-west 
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5.4 Building 3 - Shelter and toilet block 

(see Figs 22-25) 

The public shelter was built in 1977, after the German Government gave the islands 

£1,500 in 1975 to commemorate the centenary of the wreck of the SS Schiller and the 

heroic life-saving efforts of the islanders (Leung 2010).   

On the 1862 map, the 1889-91 and 1909 OS maps (Figs 4, 5 and 6) two earlier 

buildings are shown on the site, both aligned north-south and both almost certainly 

boat houses. By the mid twentieth century these two structures had been demolished 

and replaced with a single square building occupying the same spot. This early to mid 

twentieth century building appears on a c 1950s/60s photograph (Fig 10). It is a flat 

roofed structure which seems to share the same dimensions as the present building and 

has been terraced into the seaward bank (compare Figs 10 and 11). It is possible that 

this building was constructed originally as a pill box or gun emplacement and was 

converted for use as a public toilet after the war. 

The early to mid twentieth century building appears to have been mostly demolished 

and the northern half substantially rebuilt in 1977 with a shelter added at upper ground 

floor level within the northern half of the former footprint. The footprint of the former 

building to the south (seaward side) is now marked by a low granite wall; possibly a 

survival of the earlier building.   

The present building is a modern slope-roofed structure comprising public toilets on the 

lower ground floor accessed from the north (roadside) and a public shelter on the upper 

ground floor accessed from the top of a flight of concrete steps immediately to the west 

of the building. The walls of the lower ground floor level comprise granite rubble 

bonded with cement mortar, whilst those at upper ground floor level are concrete with 

overlain weatherboarding to the upper portion of the wall except the southern 

(seaward) wall which is plate glass windows with steel frames. The roof slopes down 

towards the south (seaward) side and has an asphalt covering. 

Internally the building is divided into two room spaces on the lower ground floor 

providing separate ‘Ladies’ and ‘Gents’ toilets. All the surfaces, openings and fittings in 

these two rooms are modern. The upper ground floor (the public shelter) is a single 

open room space, and again all the surfaces, openings and fittings are modern.  

Between 1988 and 1999 half of the public shelter functioned as Hugh Town’s Tourist 

Information Centre, however, local opposition ensured that the shelter reverted to its 

original use in 1999 (Leung 2010). 
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Fig 22 South elevation of Building 3 (shelter and toilet block) 

 

Fig 23 North elevation of Building 3(shelter and toilet block) during demolition 
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Fig 24 West elevation of Building 3 (shelter and toilet block) during demolition 

 

Fig 25 East elevation of Building 3 (shelter and toilet block) during demolition  
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Fig 26 Area for temporary site accommodation during topsoil stripping, 8/2/2103 

 

 

Fig 27 Interior of the old lifeboat station after removal of the existing floor (Building 1)  
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6 Archaeological watching brief results 
(see Fig 3 for area locations) 

6.1 Positioning of temporary site accommodation 

In early February 2012 an area located on a raised lawn adjacent to the sea-front 

parade (Figs 3 and 26) was stripped of turf and topsoil to accommodate the site cabins 

for the duration of the works. The area, measuring approximately 30m east-west by 

6m north-south was stripped using a 360 excavator equipped with a grading bucket. 

This work was monitored by the project archaeologist. The area was excavated to a 

depth of approximately 0.35m revealing a layer of dark greyish brown topsoil 0.22m 

deep overlying made ground comprising modern re-deposited sand lenses and mid 

greyish brown sandy silt containing twentieth century pottery, roof slate fragments, 

brick fragments and plastic. No archaeological deposits were revealed.  

6.2 Site inspection (test pits) 

Four small test pits were also excavated in February 2012 as part of the site works (Fig 

3).  

Test pit 1, measuring 0.5m² was located in the Porthcressa Road to the north of the 

Shelter. This revealed only disturbed, re-deposited sand below the road make-up from 

which a clay pipe bowl was recovered.  

Three other pits (TP2, TP3 and TP4) measuring approximately 0.8m wide by 1.5m long 

and up to 2m deep were excavated on the sea-front parade spaced approximately 50m 

apart. All three pits demonstrated that the parade had been entirely rebuilt during the 

1990s after damage caused by a severe storm in 1989 (Fig 35). The parade was found 

to be constructed from re-deposited sand containing occasional pieces of plastic 

stacked up behind the modern concrete block defence wall. 

6.3 General groundworks 

6.3.1 Lot 1 Library/Register Office (Lifeboat House/Bulb Treatment 

Station, Katie’s Bus Garage Buildings 1 and 1a) 

In February 2012, the lean to bus garage (Building 1a was demolished (Fig 28) No 

features of archaeological interest were revealed and no finds were recovered. The 

existing floor of the old Lifeboat House was taken up, underneath was compacted sand. 

No archaeological features were revealed and no finds recovered (Fig 27). 

6.3.2 Lot 2 Works Units/Apartments (formerly St Mary’s Library, Building 

2) 

Excavations on this site commenced in the week beginning 11 June 2012, digging  to 

depth of 1.4m and revealing only sand. No features or finds of archaeological interest 

were found (Fig 29). 

6.3.3 Lot 3 Amenity Building (formerly shelter and toilet block, Building 3) 

The excavations where were through layers of redeposited sand. Nothing of 

archaeological interest was found, although the site had clearly been used as a backfill 

storage area. Excavations were completed on 5 March 2013 (Fig 30). 
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6.3.4 Lot 4 General landscaping/external works 

General landscaping works along Porthcressa Bank removed twentieth make up 

deposits of sand and rubble up to 1.2m deep, containing modern artefacts such as 

bottle glass and china (Fig 31).  

Groundworks on the sea-front parade revealed the tops of wooden posts which are 

interpreted as part of the wooden shuttering erected in the winter of 1964/65. The tops 

of the posts measured 8” by 6” and they were spaced approximately 2m apart (Fig 32). 

The ground was capped at this level so the posts have been preserved in situ. 

Excavations for footings for new wall opposite to Sibley’s Estate Agents during week 

commencing 18 June 2012 did not reveal any features or finds of archaeological 

interest. 

The existing tarmac was removed and excavations undertaken to a depth of 

approximately 0.4m through rubble and sand for the new surfacing works in the 

Porthcressa Square in October 2012. A length of chain fixed to a bracket was 

uncovered but this was not attached to anything, and was not retained (Fig 33). 

 

 

Fig 28 Site of Building 1a (garage) after demolition 

 



Porthcressa Regeneration Project, St Mary’s, IOS, Final Report 

 

 23 

 

Fig 29 Lot 2, site of former library (Building 2) 

 

 

Fig 30 Amenity area (Lot 3), site of former shelter and toilet block (Building 3) 
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Fig 31 General landscaping works (Lot 4) on Porthcressa Bank showing modern made 

up ground  

 

Fig 32 Tops of wooden posts associated with 1960s shuttering  
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Fig 33 Chain and bracket uncovered during resurfacing work at Porthcressa Square 

 

7 Conclusions/discussion 
A reassessment of the history of Porthcressa Bank during the twentieth century shows 

that despite of the extent of the excavations associated with the Porthcressa 

Regeneration scheme the lack of archaeological features and finds is unsurprising 

because the area had been severely affected by storm damage and re-landscaped on 

number of occasions. 

Firstly, in 1902 the remaining traces of shipbuilding activity on the Porthcressa shore 

were cleared away by the Council of the Isles of Scilly. The area was then levelled and 

grassed the area and seating provided (Bennett et al 1991). 

Then, in March 1962, severe storms ripped up the entire bank bordering Porthcressa 

beach with ‘granite boulders weighing many, many tons being tossed about like 

playthings’ (Mumford, 1972, 33). New sea defences in the form of wooden shuttering 

were put in place in the winter of 1964/65. 

 

Further severe gales in the winter of 1989/90 also caused much damage. Porthcressa 

beach took the full force of the wind and sea, a good deal of the beach and a vast 

amount of the bank behind the barrier boards were washed away (Gibson nd, 45, 47). 

Figure 35 shows the extent of the damage and also the form of the 1964/65 shuttering; 

it is likely to be the tops of these wooden uprights that were revealed below the surface 

of the sea-front parade. 

 

Urgent remedial works were undertaken by the Council of the Isles of Scilly at that 

time, but the general state of dilapidation and damage caused by the event greatly 

increased the risk of breaching in similar storm conditions and so in 1994/95 a concrete 

wall was constructed in front of the existing bulkhead as a defence along the seafront 

(Fig 36) and the damaged area re-landscaped (cf Landmark Environmental Consultants, 

1994). 
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Fig 34 Winter storms lash Porthcressa beach in 1974 (photo: © The Gibson Collection) 

 
Fig 35 Damage at Porthcressa beach caused by the 1989/90 storms (© Gibson 

Collection) 
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Fig 36 Porthcressa in 1994, showing the repaired timber bulkhead (photo: Landmark 

Environmental Consultants) 
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The HE project number is 146111 
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146111 
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146111\Final Report\Porthcressa Report 

 

The project’s documentary archive is stored at the Isles of Scilly Museum, Church 
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Appendix 2 Written Scheme of Investigation 
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